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The J. 0. Douglas House, situated on a corner lot near St. 
Joseph Sound, is a T-shaped structure with a central hall flanked 
by two rooms to the east and one room to the west on the first floor. 
A two-story Tee-wing with a one-story extention (original kitchen) 
projects from the south (rear) elevation. Two di&sfifflilar ~inferior 
chimneys pierce the gable roof of the main section. Brick piers with 
wood lattice infill support the frame structure covered with hori­ 
zontal siding.

The symmetrical 5-bay north (entrance) facade is composed of 
six over six double hung sash windows with pedimented architraves. 
The center entrance consists of double four panel doors with a two- 
light transom sash and side lights. A one-story hipped roof porch 
with jigsaw tracery with brackets and a flat, sawn balustrade ex­ 
tends across the three center bays of the north facade.

The fenestration on the west (side) elevation is irregular: a 
pentagonal bay is located in the first story while the second story 
has three irregularly spaced windows. The east (side) elevation of the 
main section has symmetrical four-bay fenestration on both 
stories except for an additional window in an enclosed porch extend­ 
ing from the rear of this section.

The two-story wing has irregular fenestration with two over two 
double hung sash windows. A one-story porch with details duplicating 
those on the front porch extends along the west (side) of the Tee. 
The original kitchen wing has six over six double hung sash windows 
as does the main section of the house although it is sheathed with 
board and batten siding.

The interior is undistinguished except for wood wainscot 
with wood panels above and window and door architraves with shallow 
pediments duplicating those on the exterior. The flooring is wide 
tongue and grooved which has been painted as long as the owner can 
remember.

Although the house has been altered several times since it was 
constructed in 1880, the modifications appear not to have substan­ 
tially changed the character of the original dwelling. Converting 
the house into three apartments in the early twentieth century did 
not affect the principal partitions. The original detached board 
and batten kitchen was joined to the house by the addition of the 
two-story Tee, thought to have occurred before 1895.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The John 0. Douglas House derives * its significance from being one 
of the oldest physical remnants of the town of. Dune din •• and the home 
of one of the owners of an important early store in the pioneer commu­ 
nity. It remains an excellent example of vernacular-architecture in 
central Florida.

John 0. Douglas came to Dunedin from Scotland in the late 1870 f s 
and entered into partnership with James Sommerville. They opened a 
general merchandise store in a portion of a cotton gin building. This 
situation was temporary, however, since Douglas and Sommerville soon 
constructed their own building on the bay and built a pier for shipping 
goods and agricultural products northward (chiefly to Cedar Key). It 
was not until after the opening of the store and shipping facilities 
that ... "Dunedin became the principal trading point, as the Douglas 
and Sommerville enterprise was a large one, and drew business from the 
entire Peninsula."2 : • , ,

Although citrus had been grown commercially and exported from St. 
Augustine in the ' 17.60-1 s, it was not until the 1870's that growers 
realized the size of the potential market and the possibility of satis­ 
fying it with Florida fruit. By 1889, the marketable value of citrus 
grown in Florida reached $3,080,000. 5 Heavy dependence on business 
from the citrus industry resulted in the Douglas and Sommerville com­ 
pany's bankruptcy after the severe freeze of 1894-1895. 6

After purchasing the land in 1878, 7 Douglas had his home con­ 
structed in 1880. 8 An 1884 plat shows the Douglas House along with two 
stores and a second house. 9 Of these buildings, only the Douglas 
House remains.

In 1878, Douglas petitioned the federal government for a post 
office to be located on the premises of his general store and to be 
called Dunedin, the Gaelic equivalent for Edinburgh, capital of
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ScotlanqU;} 0 - Thenpetition was granted the same year. 11

This house is a typical late nineteenth century dwelling of cen­ 
tral Florida. The fact that little of the original fabric has been 
altered makes this house an important component of the extant 
architectural heritage of the state. Except for the flat sawn balus­ 
ters, posts and brackets on the porches, the very simple window 
treatment, and the projecting bay, the Douglas house is simply a five 
bay rectangular structure with a "Tee" wing addition evidencing no 
discernable style.
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